

Metropolitan Nashville and Davidson County, TN Metropolitan Council

# Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, May 2, 2023	6:30 PM	Metropolitan Courthouse
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•••••	

#### Announcements

#### Call to Order

The Metropolitan Council met in regular session on this date at 6:30 p.m. in the Metropolitan Courthouse.

The invocation was offered by Pastor Dwayne Lewis of New Season Church.

#### Pledge of Allegiance

The Metropolitan Council gave the pledge of allegiance to the American Flag.

#### Roll Call

The roll was called and the following members were present during the progress of the meeting: Shulman, Mendes, Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Gamble, Parker, Withers, Benedict, VanReece, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Roberts, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Murphy, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg (35); Absent: Suara, Hall, Swope, Hagar, and Vercher (5).

#### Approval of Minutes

The minutes of the special meeting on April 25, 2023 were approved.

Without objection, the following resolution was taken out of order.

**RS2023-2153** A resolution honoring the victims of the Covenant School shooting on March 27, 2023 and recognizing the actions of the Covenant School staff.

Council Member Pulley moved to adopt the resolution and that all members voting in the affirmative to be listed as a co-sponsor, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (31): Mendes, Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Gamble, Parker, Withers, Benedict, VanReece, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Cash, O'Connell, Roberts, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Murphy, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

### **Elections and Confirmations**

23-320 Civil Service Commission

Reappointment of Mr. William Farmer for a term expiring on March 31, 2028.

Council Member Murphy moved to defer the appointment, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

# **Proposed Rule Amendment**

Rule 49Proposed Amendment to Rule 49 of the Metropolitan Council Rules ofAmendmentProcedure.

Amending Rule 49 by adding the following new section:

9. If a vacancy occurs in the Tennessee General Assembly, the Vice Mayor may immediately notice the vacancy. If the Vice Mayor does not notice the vacancy, twenty-one councilmembers may request in writing that the vacancy be noticed and the Vice Mayor shall notice the vacancy. An election may be conducted at the next Council meeting, including a special called Council meeting, for an interim successor to fill the vacant seat. Nominations may be taken at this meeting and nominees need not complete a questionnaire or appear before the Rules Committee. At the meeting when the selection is to be conducted, the Council member or other person having nominated a candidate may speak for no more than five minutes and may yield the floor to the candidate or other persons who wish to speak in support of the nomination. No more than five minutes total shall be given any one candidate. The election to fill the vacancy shall be conducted in the same manner as provided in Rule 48(2) and (3).

Council Member Rosenberg moved to adopt the Rule 49 amendment, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (29): Allen, Toombs, Gamble, Parker, Withers, Benedict, VanReece, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Murphy, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

# **Resolutions on Public Hearing**

**RS2023-2130** A resolution exempting Riverside Revival, located at 1600 Riverside Drive from the minimum distance requirements for obtaining a beer permit pursuant to Section 7.08.090.E of the Metropolitan Code.

Council Member Benedict requested a hearing from the public on this resolution which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the resolution and a citizen was heard in favor of the resolution. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Benedict moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (30): Mendes, Allen, Toombs, Gamble, Parker, Withers, Benedict, VanReece, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Cash, O'Connell, Roberts, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Murphy, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0). **RS2023-2131** A resolution exempting Nelson's Green Brier Distillery, located at 1414 Clinton Street from the minimum distance requirements for obtaining a beer permit pursuant to Section 7.08.090.E of the Metropolitan Code.

Council Member O'Connell requested a hearing from the public on this resolution which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the resolution and a citizen was heard in favor of the resolution. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member O'Connell moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Mendes, Allen, Toombs, Gamble, Parker, Withers, Benedict, VanReece, Hancock, Young, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Cash, O'Connell, Roberts, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Murphy, Pulley, Johnston, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

# Bills on Public Hearing

**BL2023-1691** An Ordinance amending Section 17.12.030 of the Metropolitan Code, Zoning Regulations regarding street setbacks and building orientation for residential corner lots (Proposal No. 2023Z-002TX-001).

Council Member Johnston requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Johnston moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1716** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from AR2A to MUL-A zoning for property located at 6930 Nolensville Pike, approximately 290 feet south of Southpoint Parkway (3.69 acres) all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022Z-054PR-001).

Council Member Rutherford moved to indefinitely defer the bill, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1758** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS10 to SP zoning on properties located at 3302 Walton Lane and Walton Lane (unnumbered) and on part of 3300 and 3344 Walton Lane, approximately 211 feet west of Slate Drive, (15.2 acres), to permit 175 residential units, , all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-046-001).

Council Member VanReece moved to defer the bill to the July 6, 2023 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

<u>BL2023-1759</u>	An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1758, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at 3302 Walton Lane and Walton Lane (unnumbered) and on part of 3300 and 3344 Walton Lane, approximately 211 feet west of Slate Drive, (15.2 acres), to permit 175 residential units, , all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-046-001). <b>THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.</b>
	Council Member VanReece moved to defer the bill to the July 6, 2023 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1807</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS10 and RS15 to SP zoning on properties located at 4340 Longfellow Drive and 2646 Lock Two Road, at the current terminus of Longfellow Drive, partially located within a Planned Unit Development Overlay District (135.06 acres), to permit 234 residential units and a 75 bed assisted-care living facility, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-012-001).
	Council Member Syracuse requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and citizens were heard in favor of and in opposition to the bill. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Syracuse moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council, with Council Member Styles abstaining.
<u>BL2023-1808</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by cancelling a portion of a Planned Unit Development Overlay District for property located at 2646 Lock Two Road, north of Cain Harbor Road, zoned RS10 (76.21 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 18-86P-001).
	Council Member Syracuse requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The

heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Syracuse moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. BL2023-1809 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by cancelling a portion of an Institutional Overly for various properties on both sides of Gallatin Avenue and north of Douglas Avenue, located within the Nashville Auto Diesel College Institutional Overlay District, zoned CS, ORI, RM20, and RS5 (19.8 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2005P-029-002).

> Council Member Parker requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Parker moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1810** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by amending a Specific Plan for properties located at 2143, 2145, and 2145B Goodrich Avenue, 2125 Buena Vista Pike and various properties located between Alpine Avenue and Goodrich Avenue, approximately 290 feet northwest of Buena Vista Pike, zoned SP and R8 (2.85 acres), to expand the boundary of the SP and to permit 11 additional multi-family residential units for a maximum of 37 units overall, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2019SP-014-003).

Council Member Toombs requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Toombs moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1811** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by amending a Specific Plan on property located at 2850 Lebanon Pike, southwest of Munn Road, zoned SP and located in the Downtown Donelson Urban Design Overlay (4.95 acres), to permit 98 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2021SP-025-003).

Council Member Syracuse requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Syracuse moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

<u>BL2023-1812</u>	An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1811, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at 2850 Lebanon Pike, southwest of Munn Road, zoned SP and located in the Downtown Donelson Urban Design Overlay (4.95 acres), to permit 98 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2021SP-025-003). <b>THE</b> <b>PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO</b> <b>BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.</b>
	Council Member Syracuse requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Syracuse moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1813</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS5 to R6-A zoning for property located at 1717 Luton Street, approximately 450 feet south of East Trinity Lane (0.32 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-001PR-001).
	Council Member Parker requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Parker moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1814</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS15 to R20 zoning for property located at 3900 Hydes Ferry Road, approximately 280 feet northwest of Emerald Drive (0.82 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-015PR-001).
	Council Member Toombs moved to defer the bill to the July 6, 2023 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1815</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS5 to SP zoning on property located at 307 Susannah Court, at the corner of Dakota Avenue and 38th Ave N, located within a Planned Unit Overlay District, (9.44 acres), to permit 187 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-082-001).
	Council Member Murphy moved to defer the bill to the July 6, 2023 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1815, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at at 307 Susannah Court, at the corner of Dakota Avenue and 38th Ave N, located within a Planned Unit Overlay District, (9.44 acres), to permit 187 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-082-001)
THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.
Council Member Murphy moved to defer the bill to the July 6, 2023 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by cancelling a Planned Unit Development Overlay District on property located at 307 Susannah Court, at the southwest corner of Dakota Avenue and 38th Avenue North (9.44 acres), zoned RS5, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 8-78P-001).
Council Member Murphy moved to defer the bill to the July 6, 2023 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from AR2a, CS, and R15 to SP zoning on properties located at 2400 Pennington Bend Road (unnumbered) and McGavock Pike (unnumbered), approximately 61 feet north of Opry Mills Drive, (214.37 acres), to permit a mixed-use development, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-057-001).
Council Member Syracuse requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and citizens were heard in favor of and in opposition to the bill. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Syracuse moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was properly seconded. Council Member Benedict moved to suspend the rules of procedure to offer a late filed amendment, however the Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee objected to the late filed nature of the amendment, and the amendment was not offered. Council Member Syracuse moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council, with Council Member Benedict voting No and the following Council Members abstaining: Hurt, Welsch, and Styles.

<u>BL2023-1819</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS5 to RM9-A-NS zoning for property located at 322 Elberta Street, approximately 260 feet east of Nolensville Pike (0.43 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-010PR-001).
	Council Member Welsch requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Welsch moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1822</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by cancelling an Urban Design Overlay District for properties located at 1609 McGavock Street, 115 16th Avenue South and 114 and 116 17th Avenue South, approximately 120 feet northwest of Division Street, zoned CF, located within the Music Row Urban Design Overlay District and Arts Center Redevelopment District (1.17 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2001UD-002-012).
	Council Member O'Connell requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member O'Connell moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1823</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by amending a Specific Plan for properties located at 272, 288, and 296 Broadmoor Drive, and 329, 341 and 349 Ben Allen Road, west of Ellington Parkway, zoned SP (51.64 acres), to permit a mixed use development with nonresidential uses and 482 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2017SP-034-003).
	Council Member VanReece requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member VanReece moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

<u>BL2023-1824</u>	An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1823, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at 272, 288, and 296 Broadmoor Drive, and 329, 341 and 349 Ben Allen Road, west of Ellington Parkway, zoned SP (51.64 acres), to permit a mixed use development with nonresidential uses and 482 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2017SP-034-003). THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.
	Council Member VanReece requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member VanReece moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1825</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by amending a Specific Plan for properties located at 1201, 1203, 1205 and 1211 8th Avenue South, 809 Edgehill Ave and 1430 Hillside Avenue, approximately 75 feet east of Horton Avenue, zoned SP (7.63 acres), to amend zones 1, 2, 6, and the associated street sections. (Proposal #2018SP-026-009)
	Council Member Sledge requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Sledge moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1826</u>	An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1825, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at 1201, 1203, 1205 and 1211 8th Avenue South, 809 Edgehill Ave and 1430 Hillside Avenue, approximately 75 feet east of Horton Avenue, zoned SP (7.63 acres), to amend zones 1, 2, 6, and the associated street sections. (Proposal #2018SP-026-009) <b>THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.</b>
	Council Member Sledge requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Sledge moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

<u>BL2023-1827</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from R6, R40, and SP to SP zoning for properties located at 813 Watts Lane, 1201, 1210, 1211, 1216, 1222, and 1230 Watts Terrace and Watts Terrace (unnumbered), approximately 1,000 feet east of Charlotte Pike, (6.22 acres), to permit 71 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-045-001).
	Council Member Mendes requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Mendes moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council, with Council Member Roberts abstaining.
<u>BL2023-1828</u>	An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1827, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at at 813 Watts Lane, 1201, 1210, 1211, 1216, 1222, and 1230 Watts Terrace and Watts Terrace (unnumbered), approximately 1,000 feet east of Charlotte Pike, (6.22 acres), to permit 71multi-family residential units, approximately 1,000 feet east of Charlotte Pike, (6.22 acres),all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-045-001). <b>THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.</b>
	Council Member Mendes requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Mendes moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council, with Council Member Roberts abstaining.

**BL2023-1829** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from MUL to SP zoning for property located at 4500 Harding Pike, southwest of the corner of White Bridge Pike and Harding Pike (10.57 acres), to permit a mixed-use development, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-018-001).

Council Member Murphy requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and citizens were heard in favor of and in opposition to the bill. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Murphy moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was properly seconded. Council Member Murphy withdrew Proposed Amendment 1. Council Member Murphy offered Proposed Amendment 2, hereinafter referred to as Amendment A, which motion was properly seconded. Council Member Roberts moved to defer the bill to the June 6, 2023 meeting, which motion was properly seconded. After discussion, Council Member Young called for the previous question, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. The matter recurred on the motion to defer the bill to the June 6, 2023 meeting, which motion was seconded and failed by the following roll call vote:

- Yes: Hurt, Evans, Syracuse, Roberts, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, and Johnston
- No: Allen, Toombs, Gamble, Parker, Withers, Benedict, VanReece, Hancock, Young, Bradford, Rhoten, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, OConnell, Murphy, Nash, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg

#### Abstain:

Council Member Murphy renewed the motion to adopt Amendment A, which motion was properly seconded. After discussion, Council Member Hancock called for the previous question, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. The matter recurred on the motion to adopt Amendment A, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council Member Hurt voting No. Council Member Murphy moved to pass the bill on second reading as amended, which motion was properly seconded. Council Member Druffel withdrew Proposed Amendments 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9. Council Member Murphy moved to pass the bill on second reading as amended, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council Member Sledge called for the previous question, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. The matter recurred on the motion to pass the bill on second reading as amended, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. The matter recurred on the motion to pass the bill on second reading as amended, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. The matter recurred on the motion to pass the bill on second reading as amended, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1830** An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1829, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at 4500 Harding Pike, southwest of the corner of White Bridge Pike and Harding Pike (10.57 acres), to permit a mixed-use development, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-018-001).

# THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.

Council Member Murphy requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and citizens were heard in favor of and in opposition to the bill. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Murphy moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

# **BL2023-1831** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS7.5 to SP zoning on property located at 1017 Pierce Road, at the corner of Shannon Avenue and Pierce Road, to permit 33 multi-family residential units, (1.72 acres) all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-024-001).

Council Member Hancock requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Hancock moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

BL2023-1832 An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023-1831, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at 1017 Pierce Road, at the corner of Shannon Avenue and Pierce Road, to permit 33 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-024-001). THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.

> Council Member Hancock requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Hancock moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

<u>BL2023-1833</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS7.5 to R8-A for property on 437 Patterson Street, east of Meade Ave (0.29 acres, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-026PR-001).
	Council Member Welsch requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Welsch moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1834</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from CL to MUL-A-NS zoning for property located at 4026 Clarksville Pike, approximately 420 feet southeast of Cedar Circle and within the Clarksville Pike at Fairview Center Urban Design Overlay (0.33 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-018PR-001).
	The bill was deferred to the July 6, 2023 public hearing pursuant to Rule 33 of the Rules of Procedure of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1835</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from CN to RM15-NS for property located at 2014 24th Avenue North, southeast of the intersection of Clarksville Pike and 24th Avenue North (0.19 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-022PR-001).
	Council Member Taylor requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Taylor moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1836</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from AR2a to SP zoning on a portion of property located at 6010 Pasquo Road, approximately 520 feet south of Nunahi Trail, (5.3 acres), to permit 20 multi-family residential units, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-087-001).
	Council Member Rosenberg requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Rosenberg moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

BL2023-1837	An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and
	requirements for BL2023-1836, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning
	District located at 6010 Pasquo Road, approximately 520 feet south of
	Nunahi Trail, (5.3 acres), to permit 20 multi-family residential units, all
	of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022SP-087-001).
	THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS
	TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.

Council Member Rosenberg requested a hearing from the public on this bill which had been previously advertised. The President asked if anyone desired to be heard for or against the bill and no one came forward to be heard. The President declared the public hearing closed. Council Member Rosenberg moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1838** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the zoning ordinance of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS7.5 to RM20-A zoning for property located at Ewing Drive (unnumbered), at the southeast corner of Knight Drive and Ewing Drive (2.54 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2022Z-109PR-001).

Council Member Toombs moved to defer the bill to the July 6, 2023 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

## **Consent Resolutions and Resolutions**

President Pro Tem Toombs assumed the Chair at this time.

- **RS2023-2132** A resolution approving amendment two to a Parental Assistance Court grant from the Tennessee Department of Human Services to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Davidson County Juvenile Court, to provide opportunities for and meet the needs of eligible low-income families who have a court ordered child support obligation and to increase program participant parenting time with their children.
- <u>RS2023-2133</u> A resolution approving the election of certain Notaries Public for Davidson County.
- **RS2023-2134** A resolution accepting an Economic Development Initiative, Community Project Funding grant from the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Historical Commission, to provide funding for American Baptist College Historic Building Improvements and a Civil Rights Walking Tour.
- **RS2023-2136** A resolution appropriating a total of \$89,287.00 from the Nashville Public Library to various non-profit organizations for the provision of free and high-quality summer programming through the Library's Nashville After Zone Alliance.

- **RS2023-2137** A resolution approving amendments to Contract Number L-5174, a grant contract between Nations Ministry Center and The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, and Contract Number L-5177, a grant contract between YMCA of Middle Tennessee and The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County for the provision of free and high-quality afterschool programs through the Nashville After Zone Alliance.
- **RS2023-2138** A resolution approving an application for a Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) grant from the Tennessee Department of Finance and Administration, Office of Criminal Justice Programs, to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police Department, to fund counselor and victim advocate positions, purchase supplies, and subsidize travel.
- **RS2023-2139** A resolution approving a subaward to the Nashville Department of Transportation & Multimodal Infrastructure ("NDOT") to support the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County's ("Metropolitan Government") Complete Streets demonstration project, for a total of up to \$15,000, and approving a stipend of \$4,000 to a local artist to support the artist's work on the demonstration project.
- RS2023-2140 A resolution approving Amendment 2 to an Agreement by and between the Tennessee Department of Transportation ("TDOT") and The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County ("Metropolitan Government"), acting by and through the Nashville Department of Transportation and Multimodal Infrastructure ("NDOT"), for Automatic Travelers Information System (ATIS), Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS), Communication & Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) ("the Project"), Fed. No. CM/ITS/STP-M-9312(42); State No. 19959-3239-94; PIN 040550.00 (Prop. No. 2023M-016AG-001).
- **RS2023-2141** A resolution to approve the Seventh Amendment to the Lease Agreement between The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County and Square Investment Holdings, LLC for office space in the Washington Square Building located at 222 Second Avenue North. (Proposal No. 2023M-015AG-001).
- **RS2023-2142** A resolution accepting a Where It Starts: Breaking Barriers to Business grant from Living Cities in partnership with Main Street America and the Truist Foundation to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Finance Department, to strengthen the relationship between local government and commercial corridor business support organizations with the goal of fostering an equitable entrepreneurial ecosystem for business owners of color in Nashville and address systemic barriers for business owners of color during each stage of business development and growth.
- **RS2023-2144** A resolution appropriating \$400,125 in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216 to WeGo, in partnership with Historically Black Colleges and Universities, to allow students, faculty and staff access to public transportation.

<u>RS2023-2145</u>	A resolution appropriating \$621,750 in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216 to The Nashville Food Project for the Feedback Nashville Project, a community-engaged systems transformation initiative that drives Nashville's food system towards equity, justice, and sustainability by facilitating increased collaboration and collective impact between non-profits, businesses, governments, and community members.
<u>RS2023-2146</u>	A resolution appropriating \$2.5 million dollars in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216 to Fifty Forward to build the Bordeaux Connection Center, a shared community space in Bordeaux with primary tenants Fifty Forward and Creative Girls Rock.
<u>RS2023-2147</u>	A resolution amending RS2023-1948 to clarify the fiscal sponsor for the Nashville Voluntary Organization Active Disaster Coalition.
<u>RS2023-2148</u>	A resolution amending RS2022-1362, which appropriated \$1,046,000.00 in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216 to the Nashville Fairgrounds to provide rent relief to vendors at the Nashville Flea Market, to extend the effective date and extend the rent relief.
<u>RS2023-2149</u>	A resolution amending RS2021-1116, which appropriated \$3,000,000.00 in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216, to provide rent, mortgage and utilities payments for Davidson County residents, to extend the effective date of the relief and expand rent relief to all participants who have household income up to and including 100% of AMI.
<u>RS2023-2150</u>	A resolution amending Substitute RS2022-1356, which appropriated \$20,000,000.00 in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216 to create the Nashville Small Business Recovery Fund, by enhancing the program to expediate deployment of funds.
<u>RS2023-2151</u>	A resolution approving a participation agreement between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, acting by and through the Metropolitan Department of Water and Sewerage Services, and GTOM West End, LLC, to provide improved public sanitary sewer service through the construction of an improved stormwater system (Project No. 2022066576 and Proposal Number 2023M-012AG-001).
<u>RS2023-2152</u>	A resolution authorizing the Metropolitan Department of Law to compromise and settle the property damage claim of Rae H. Ryan against the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County in the amount of \$91,532.93, with said amount to be paid out of the Self-Insured Liability Fund.
<u>RS2023-2154</u>	A resolution recognizing the retirement and service of Metro Water and Sewerage Services, System Services Division, Assistant Director Leanne Scott.
<u>RS2023-2155</u>	A Resolution recognizing Fisk University's All-American basketball player Maya Buckhanon.
<u>RS2023-2156</u>	A resolution recognizing June 25, 2023 through July 1, 2023 as Nashville Caribbean American Heritage Week.

Council Member Pulley moved to adopt the Consent Agenda Resolutions, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

# Resolutions

President Shulman resumed the Chair at this time.

**RS2023-2121** A resolution requesting the Metropolitan Employee Benefit Board reevaluate its decision to offer a Group Medicare Advantage plan to Metropolitan Government pensioners as their only option.

Council Member O'Connell moved to defer the resolution, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**RS2023-2135** A resolution appropriating a total of \$100,000.00 from a certain account of the General Fund of the General Services District for a grant to the PENCIL Foundation.

Council Member Rhoten moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was properly seconded. Council Member Rhoten offered Amendment No. 1 to the resolution, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. Council Member Rhoten moved to adopt the resolution as amended, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (27): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

**RS2023-2143** A resolution appropriating \$471,694 in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216 to the Big Brothers Big Sisters of Middle Tennessee, in partnership with Tennessee State University, to provide mentoring services for first-year college students though an initiative called Big Features.

> Council Member Rhoten moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was properly seconded. Council Member Allen offered a substitute resolution and moved that it be adopted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**RS2023-2143** A resolution appropriating \$471,694 in American Rescue Plan Act funds from Fund #30216 to the Big Brothers Big Sisters of Middle Tennessee, in partnership with Tennessee State University, to provide mentoring services for first-year college students though an initiative called Big Futures.

Council Member Rhoten moved to adopt the resolution as substituted, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (27): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

Without objection, the following bill on third reading was taken out of order.

BL2022-1471 An ordinance to amend Sections 16.24.030 and 17.04.060 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws to amend the definitions of "dwelling unit" and "family". (Proposal No. 2022Z-017TX-001).

Council Member Parker moved to defer the bill, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

#### Bills on Introduction and First Reading

**BL2023-1857** An ordinance to amend Section 10.68.020 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws relative to fireworks.

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

**BL2023-1858** An ordinance amending title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws by deleting sections 17.32.020(B)(3) and 17.40.510(C) and adding new language in those sections clarifying that signs regulated by the Metropolitan Department of Codes are to be maintained so that all sign panels remain complete and intact.

Council Member Withers moved to defer the bill, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1859** An ordinance approving a Lease Agreement by and between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Education and Nashville Classical Charter School (Proposal No. 2023M-013AG-001).

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

**BL2023-1860** An ordinance approving a Lease Agreement by and between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Education and Nashville Prep (Proposal No. 2021-014PR-001).

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

**BL2023-1861** An ordinance approving an agreement between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, acting by and through the Department of Parks and Recreation ("Parks"), and Tennessee Football, Inc. to allow Tennessee Football, Inc. to establish a program campaign to support efforts to make improvements to the Looby Community Center.

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

**BL2023-1862** An ordinance readopting the Code of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee, prepared by Municipal Code Corporation including supplemental and replacement pages thereof, containing certain ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before December 22, 2022.

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

BL2023-1863 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes, and easements for five properties located on Split Log Road and Benington Place in Williamson County, also known as Taube Subdivision (MWS Project No. 22-SL-76 and Proposal No. 2023M-054ES-001).

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

BL2023-1864 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for property located at 9928 Maupin Road in Williamson County, also known as Maupin Subdivision (MWS Project No. 22-SL-113 and Proposal No. 2023M-053ES-001).

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

BL2023-1865 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer main and sanitary sewer manholes, for property located at 2108 12th Avenue South, also known as Alley 951 Sewer Extension (MWS Project No. 22-SL-167 and Proposal No. 2023M-056ES-001).

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting.

**BL2023-1866** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from OR20 to CS for property located at 5050 Linbar Drive, east of the intersection of Wallace Road and Linbar Drive (1.08 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-023PR-001).

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

## Bills on Second Reading

**BL2023-1688** An ordinance to amend Chapters 8.04 and 8.08 relative to the regulation of animals.

Council Member Bradford offered a substitute bill and moved that it be adopted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1688** An ordinance to amend Chapters 8.04 and 8.08 relative to the regulation of animals.

Council Member Bradford offered Amendment No. 1 and moved that it be adopted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. Council Member Bradford moved to pass the bill on second reading as substituted and amended, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. **BL2023-1740** An ordinance amending Section 11.12.080 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws related to the discharge of weapons.

Council Member Rosenberg moved to defer the bill to the June 20, 2023 meeting, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

BL2023-1803 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public water mains and fire hydrant assembly, and to accept new public water main, for two properties located at 2600 Jess Neely Drive and 2555 West End Avenue, also known as Vanderbilt University Basketball Facility (MWS Project No. 22-WL-108 and Proposal No. 2023M-035ES-001).

Council Member Cash offered a substitute bill and moved that it be adopted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

BL2023-1803 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public water mains, to relocate an existing public fire hydrant assembly, and to accept new public water main, for two properties located at 2600 Jess Neely Drive and 2555 West End Avenue, also known as Vanderbilt University Basketball Facility (MWS Project No. 22-WL-108 and Proposal No. 2023M-035ES-001).

Council Member Cash moved to pass the bill on second reading as substituted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1839** An ordinance codifying a residential landlord's duty to register with the Metropolitan Department of Codes Administration pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 66-28-107, and authorizing the Department of Codes Administration to process and collect registration fees, impose and collect fines for noncompliance, and establish an administrative process for appeals of any such fines.

Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1840** An ordinance approving a lease agreement between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County and Little Big Properties, LLC for use of office space located at 150 2nd Avenue North, Nashville, Tennessee (Proposal No. 2023M-011AG-001).

Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

BL2023-1841 An ordinance authorizing Vortex, LLC c/o AJ Capital Partners to install, construct and maintain aerial and underground encroachments in the right of way located at 200 Broadway. (Proposal No. 2022M-033EN-001)

Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

<u>BL2023-1842</u> An ordinance authorizing Starwood Capital Group Holdings, L.P. to install, construct and maintain aerial and underground encroachments in the right of way located at 710 Demonbreun Street. (Proposal No. 2022M-030EN-001)

Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

<u>BL2023-1843</u>	An ordinance providing the honorary street name designation of "Pastor James H. Johnson Way" for a portion of 4th Avenue North.
	Council Member Hurt offered a substitute bill and moved that it be adopted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1843</u>	An ordinance providing the honorary street name designation of "Rev. J. H. Johnson Way" for a portion of 4th Avenue North.
	Council Member Hurt moved to pass the bill on second reading as substituted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1844</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public water main, and to accept new public water main, for six properties located on University Avenue (MWS Project No. 22-WL-135 and Proposal No. 2023M-032ES-001).
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1845</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept a new sanitary sewer main in addition to sanitary sewer manholes and easements for three properties located at 2130 Hobson Pike, 1273 Maritime Prt and Maritime Prt (unnumbered), also known as Hobson Flats (MWS Project No. 22-SL-208 and Proposal No. 2023M-040ES-001).
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1846</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing sanitary sewer mains and easements, and to accept new water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at 4154 Murfreesboro Pike and Maxwell Road (unnumbered), also known as Oliveri Phase 1 (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-75 and 22-SL-158 and Proposal No. 2023M-042ES-001).
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1847</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing water main and easements, for two properties located at 333 B Douglas Avenue and 1310 B Lischey Avenue, also known as Starlet East Condominiums (MWS Project No. 22-WL-134 and Proposal No. 2023M-044ES-001).
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1848</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept the relocation of an existing public fire hydrant assembly and a new public sanitary sewer manhole, for property located at 210 2nd Avenue North, also known as 2nd Avenue Streetscape Improvements - North Block (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-142 and 22-SL-293 and Proposal No. 2023M-039ES-001).
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

Metropolitan Council	Meeting Minutes	May 2, 2023
<u>BL2023-1849</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary force mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for five proper located on East Hill Drive and Twin Hills Drive, also known as Riverv Cumberland Hills (MWS Project No. 17-SL-246 and Proposal No. 2023M-046ES-001).	y sewer erties
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, whe was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.	nich motion
<u>BL2023-1850</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville Davidson County to accept public sanitary sewer main and sanitary s manhole, and to rehabilitate existing public sanitary sewer manholes properties located on 820 and 828 Youngs Lane, also known as Cun View Villas development (MWS Project No. 22-SL-175 and Proposal 2023M-043ES-001).	sewer , for two nberland
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, whe was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.	nich motion
<u>BL2023-1851</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville Davidson County to abandon existing public sanitary sewer main, an new public sanitary sewer main and sanitary sewer manhole, for pro located at 315 B Douglas Avenue (MWS Project No. 22-SL-212 and No. 2023M-037ES-001).	d to accept perty
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, whas seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.	nich motion
<u>BL2023-1852</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer main hydrant assembly, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for pro- located at Cane Ridge Road (unnumbered), also known as Cane Rid Phase 3 Section 3 (MWS Project Nos. 21-WL-119 and 21-SL-280 and No. 2023M-045ES-001).	ns, fire perty Ige Farms
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, whe was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.	nich motion
<u>BL2023-1853</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville Davidson County to accept the relocation of a public fire hydrant ass property located at 625 West Trinity Lane (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL Proposal No. 2023M-050ES-001).	embly, for
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, whe was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.	nich motion
<u>BL2023-1854</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville Davidson County to accept the relocation of a public fire hydrant ass property located at 1404 Clinton Street, also known as Nelson's Gree Distillery (MWS Project No. 23-WL-09 and Proposal No. 2023M-047	embly, for enbrier
	Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, whe was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.	nich motion

BL2023-1855 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for seven properties located on Glencliff Road, also known as Noble Place Townhomes (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-31 and 22-SL-74 and Proposal No. 2023M-051ES-001).

Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

BL2023-1856 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to construct public sanitary sewer mains and sanitary sewer manholes, and to acquire permanent and temporary easements through negotiations and acceptance needed for 15 properties located on Fain Street and J C Napier Street (Project No. 22-SG-239 and Proposal No. 2023M-038ES-001).

Council Member Pulley moved to pass the bill on second reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

# Bills on Third Reading

**BL2023-1717** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by applying a Contextual Overlay District to various properties located north of Moormans Arm Road and west of Whites Creek Pike, zoned RS10, RS7.5, and R6 (208.23 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023COD-003-001).

Council Member Toombs offered a substitute bill and moved that it be adopted, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

**BL2023-1717** An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by applying a Contextual Overlay District to various properties located north of Moormans Arm Road and west of Whites Creek Pike, zoned RS10, RS7.5, and R6 (42.53 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023COD-003-001).

Council Member Toombs moved to pass the bill on third reading as substituted, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

<u>BL2023-1775</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS7.5 to R8 zoning for properties located at 232 and 233 Wheeler Avenue, at the western corner of Wheeler Avenue and Tibbs Drive (0.55 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-013PR-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1780</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS10 to R10 zoning for property located at 2619 Old Buena Vista Road, approximately 300 feet northwest of Day Street (0.41 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-004PR-001).
	Council Member Toombs offered a substitute bill and moved that it be approved, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1780</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS10 to SP zoning for property located at 2619 Old Buena Vista Road, approximately 300 feet northwest of Day Street (0.41 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-004PR-001).
	Council Member Toombs moved to pass the bill on third reading as substituted, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1793</u>	An ordinance approving a Lease Agreement by and between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Education and East End Prep (Proposal No. 2023M-003AG-001).
	Council Member Rhoten moved to defer the bill, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>BL2023-1794</u>	An ordinance approving a contract between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County and Xylem Vue, Inc. to provide updates and maintenance of Water Network Optimization distribution system and treatment plant optimization platform.
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

<u>BL2023-1795</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to acquire property through negotiation, condemnation, or fee simple take, for property located at Country Way Road (unnumbered), for the Clean Water Nashville Town Village Sewer Pump Station Upgrade Project (Project No. 22-SC-0132 and Proposal No. 2022M-148ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1796</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to acquire a portion of two properties through negotiations, condemnation or fee simple take, for properties located at 1213 and 1217 Northgate Business Parkway, for the construction of the Dry Creek WRF Flood Mitigation System (MWS Project No. 21-SC-0226 and Proposal No. 2022M-120ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1797</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing water and sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manhole and easements, and to accept new water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assembly, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for property located at 1310 Hillside Avenue, also known as Reservoir Zone 3 (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-25 and 22-SL-92 and Proposal No. 2023M-027ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1798</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public fire hydrant assembly, for two properties located at 701 and 711 South 7th Street, also known as Martha O'Bryan Center (MWS Project No. 22-WL-43 and Proposal No. 2023M-030ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

<u>BL2023-1799</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept a new public water main, for two properties located at 409 and 411 McAdoo Avenue (MWS Project Nos. 23-WL-07 and Proposal No. 2023M-031ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1800</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept the relocation of fire hydrant assemblies, for property located at 30 Peabody Street, also known as Peabody Union Water, (MWS Project No. 21-WL-94 and Proposal No. 2023M-025ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1801</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public sanitary sewer mains and easements, and to accept new sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at 30 and 90 Peabody Street, also known as Peabody Union Sewer (MWS Project No. 21-SL-221 and Proposal No. 2023M-034ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1802</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for property located at 616 North Dupont Avenue, also known as Birchstone Village (MWS Project No. 22-SL-63 and Proposal No. 2023M-036ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

<u>BL2023-1804</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for property located at Central Pike (unnumbered), also known as Tulip Grove and Central Pike Phase 2 (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-92 and 22-SL-189 and Proposal No. 2023M-029ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1805</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing water mains, fire hydrant assemblies and easements, and to accept new public water mains, fire hydrant assemblies, replacement of fire hydrant assemblies and easements, at six properties located on Knight Drive, Tisdall Drive, Green Lane, and Brick Church Lane, off-site of the project location at 420 Green Lane and Tisdall Drive (unnumbered), also known as Ridgecrest at Vista Phase 2 (MWS Project No. 22-WL-84 and Proposal No. 2022M-192ES-002).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).
<u>BL2023-1806</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public combination sewer main, combination sewer manhole and easement, and to accept the replacement of a combination sewer manhole with new public stormwater inlet, for three properties located at 125 and 129 11th Avenue and Church Street (unnumbered) (MWS Project No. 22-SL-284 and Proposal No. 2023M-033ES-001).
	Council Member Nash moved to pass the bill on third reading, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (28): Hurt, Allen, Toombs, Parker, Withers, Hancock, Young, Evans, Bradford, Rhoten, Syracuse, Welsch, Sledge, Cash, O'Connell, Taylor, Hausser, Druffel, Pulley, Johnston, Nash, Porterfield, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Henderson, and Rosenberg; No (0); Abstain (0).

# Adjournment

Requests for ADA accommodation should be directed to the Metropolitan Clerk at 615-862-6770.